AGREEMENT

by and between

MIDDLESEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

and

UNITED STEEL, PAPER AND FORESTRY, RUBBER, MANUFACTURING, ENERGY, ALLIED INDUSTRIAL AND SERVICE WORKERS INTERNATIONAL UNION on behalf of USW LOCAL 10-01426

DATED: January 1, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
1	Non-Discrimination/Harassment	2
2	Recognition	3
3	Authorized Representatives	4
4	Wages	6
5	Hours of Work	11
6	Breaks	13
7	Overtime	
8	Merit Increases – Promotions – New Employees	14
9	Seasonal Employees (Summer Help)	15
10	Health Benefits	16
11	Holidays	17
12	Personal Days	20
13	Bereavement	22
14	Vacations	23
15		24
	Sick Leave	26
16	Intentionally Left Blank	28
17	Discipline by Discharge; Grievance Procedure	29

18	Adherence to Public Employees Relation Commission	31
19	Part Time Employees	32
20	Economy Layoffs	33
21	Accumulated Sick Time Payment Upon Retirement	34
22	Disability Insurance/ Workers Compensation	35
23	Personnel Files	36
24	Family Leave	38
25	Military Leave	40
26	Jury Duty	41
27	Job Vacancy – Job Bidding	42
28	Rights and Privileges of the Union	44
29	Safety	45
30	Meals	46
31	Mileage	47
32	Employee's Physicals	48
33	Nurse Practice Committee	49
34	Management Rights	50
35	Seminars	51
36	Required Licensures	52

3/	Rules of the MCIA	5.
38	Educational Leave	54
39	Tuition Reimbursement	5:
40	Union Conference Days	56
41	No Strike or Lock-Out	57
42	Computation or Typographical Errors/Amendments	58
43	Contracting or Subcontracting	59
44.	Duration of Contract	60
45	Utilization of Employees	61
46	Coverage of Union Members under Malpractice Liability Insurance	62
47	Participation in P.E.R.S.	63
48	State of Emergency/ Transportation	64
49	Severability	65
50	Orientation	66
51	Successorship Clause	67
52	Definitions	68
53	Uniforms and Badges	69

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the first day of January, 2014, by and between the MIDDLESEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY, a public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey (hereinafter referred to as the "MCIA") and the UNITED STEEL, **PAPER** AND FORESTRY, RUBBER, MANUFACTURING, ENERGY, ALLIED INDUSTRIAL AND **SERVICE** WORKERS INTERNATIONAL UNION on behalf of USW LOCAL 10-01426 (hereinafter known as the "Union").

WHEREAS, the MCIA is the licensed operator of the long term care facilities Roosevelt Care Center at Edison ("RCC-Edison") and Roosevelt Care Center at Old Bridge ("RCC-OB"), (collectively, "Roosevelt Care Center"); and

WHEREAS, the Union has been selected as the bargaining agent by the employees to be defined herein (collectively, the "Employees" or individually, "Employee") of the MCIA at Roosevelt Care Center, in accordance with Chapter 303 of the Pamphlet Laws of 1968 of the State of New Jersey (the "Law"), and said Union has been certified as such by the Public Employment Relations Commission; and

WHEREAS, said Union has been in negotiations with the MCIA pursuant to the Law; and

WHEREAS, the Union and the MCIA have agreed upon certain terms of employment as a result of the negotiations carried on pursuant to the Law, and, it is understood that this Agreement contains all the terms and conditions of employment between the MCIA and the Employees covered by this Agreement, and previous or past practice, existing or alleged to have been existing prior to the effective date of this Agreement, shall not be admissible in any judicial or grievance procedure hearing;

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the Law as herein provided, the parties hereto, in consideration of the following mutual promises, covenants, and agreements contained herein, do hereby establish the following terms and conditions which shall govern the activities of the parties and the Employees.

NON-DISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT

The parties to this Agreement agree not to discriminate for employment at Roosevelt Care Center, member of the Union or applicant for membership in the Union, because of religion, race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, political or union affiliation, marital status, sexual or affectional orientation, ancestry, gender, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or qualified handicap, but each party will take applicable affirmative action to insure that employees and applicants for employment, applicants for membership and members of the Union are treated during employment without regard to their religion, race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin, political or union affiliation, marital status, sexual or affectional orientation, ancestry, gender, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or qualified handicap. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, employment, upgrading, demotions or transfer, recruitment or recruitment after layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for training, pay or other forms of compensation.

The parties to this Agreement believe that the issue of people working together is vital to the public sector workplace. The parties agree that all employees should be permitted to work in an environment free from unlawful harassment and agree that all parties should be mindful of their actions and what they say.

RECOGNITION

The Union is hereby designated as the exclusive bargaining agent for all full time and part time regularly scheduled Registered Nurses and Licensed Practical Nurses, USW on behalf of USW Local 10-01426, employed by the MCIA at Roosevelt Care Center in the following job titles who have successfully completed a ninety (90) day probationary period. All other titles are excluded.

Title

Registered Nurse (RN)
Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN)
Wound Care Nurse (RN)
Employee Health/ Risk Management Nurse(LPN)

Part-time Employees shall receive benefits only as indicated herein.

Base wage rates for each Employee within the above titles shall be as set forth in Article 4 hereof.

Any new nursing job or position created by the MCIA that is non-supervisory or non-management will be included in the Union. If the parties are unable to agree on the inclusion or exclusion of a title, the Union or the MCIA will pursue statutory procedures under the New Jersey Employee Relations Act constituting Chapter 100 of the Pamphlet Laws of 1941 of the State of New Jersey, as amended and supplemented by Chapter 303 of the Pamphlet Laws of 1968, of the State of New Jersey (the "Employer Employee Act"). The MCIA agrees to negotiate the salaries and titles of such jobs or positions and shall post the job or position.

The MCIA agrees that there shall be no individual agreements between bargaining unit employees and the MCIA without the approval of the Union.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Authorized representatives of the Union, with the Supervisor's permission, shall have the right to enter upon the premises of Roosevelt Care Center during working hours for the purpose of bargaining negotiations and grievance procedures relative to enforcement of this Agreement, so long as such visits do not interfere with proper service to the public or on-going workday schedules. It is also understood that no Employee shall engage in any Union activity during the Employee's working hours. Also, no Union literature is to be distributed in working locations at any time.

It is agreed that the Union will furnish to the MCIA and to the Roosevelt Care Center Human Resources Office, a list of duly elected Stewards as of the first day of the current contract year, and shall provide the MCIA and the Roosevelt Care Center Human Resources Office with any modifications to such list.

- A. The MCIA, after an Employee's ninety (90) day probationary period, shall be and is hereby authorized and directed to deduct from the pay of each Employee who furnished a written authorization for such deduction per authorization card (exhibited on the last page of this Agreement) during each calendar month, the amount of monthly Union dues or such other amount as may be certified to the MCIA by the Union at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the deduction of Union dues is to be made. Deduction of the Union dues made pursuant thereto shall be remitted by the MCIA to MSC-410663, USW, P. O. Box 415000, Nashville, Tennessee 37241-5000, Attention: Secretary-Treasurer, for the calendar month for which such deductions were made. Checks shall be made payable to USW International Union and shall include the local number on the check.
- B. Any member of the Union desiring to resign from the Union will be permitted to do so only on two (2) specific occasions during the calendar year, i.e., on or before January 1st or July 1st. This request must be made in writing to the President of the

Union and the MCIA, with a copy to the Roosevelt Care Center Human Resources Office.

C. Union Security. Any employee in the Union on the effective date of this Agreement who does not join the Union within ninety (90) days thereafter, any new employee who does not join the Union within ninety (90) days of employment with the MCIA or any employee who resigns from the Union shall, as a condition of employment, pay a Representation Fee to the Union by automatic payroll deduction. The Representation Fee shall be in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the regular Union membership dues, fees, and assessments as certified to the MCIA by the Union. The Union may revise its certification of the amount of the Representation Fee at any time to reflect changes in the regular Union membership dues, fees, and assessments. The Union's entitlement to the Representation Fee shall continue beyond the termination date of this Agreement so long as the Union remains the majority representative of the Employees in the Union; provided however, that no modification is made in this provision by a successor agreement between the Union and the MCIA.

It is understood that the Union has a provision in the International Constitution which provides a procedure whereby a person paying a fee under an Agency Shop Agreement may obtain a rebate for that portion of his/her fee which is used for partisan, political, or ideological purposes.

WAGES

A. WAGES

- 1. Effective as of January 1, 2014, all employees of the Union who have at least six (6) months service at Roosevelt Care Center shall receive a 2% increase to their base rate.
- 2. Effective on January 1, 2015, all Employees of the Union who have at least six (6) months service at Roosevelt Care Center shall receive a 2% increase to their base rate.
- 3. Effective on January 1, 2016, all Employees of the Union who have at least six (6) months service at Roosevelt Care Center shall receive a 2% increase to their base rate.
- 4. Effective on January 1, 2017, all employees of the Union who have at least six (6) months service at Roosevelt Care Center shall receive a 2% increase to their base rate.

B. No Frills Position.

The No Frills Position ("NFP") has been established for new and existing Employees who choose to forego all benefits, including, but not limited to, Health Benefits (as hereinafter defined), vacation, personal leave, bereavement leave, sick leave and holidays. The NFP differential for an RN shall be \$7.50. The NFP differential for the LPN shall be \$7.00.

The NFP is subject to the following:

- a) Benefits that are not available to an Employee in an NFP position include without limitation, health benefits including medical, drug prescription, dental, vision (collectively, "Health Benefits"), as well as paid holidays, paid vacation, paid sick leave, paid bereavement days, paid personal days, paid jury duty, paid shift and weekend differentials and paid fees (such as licensing).
- b) New Employees, at the time of hire, can opt to be placed in a regular position with benefits or a "no benefits" position at the NFP rate.
- c) Existing Employees can move between a "benefits" position and a "no benefits position" during the established health benefits open enrollment period near the

end of each calendar year, provided, however, that an Employee may move from a "no benefits position" to a "benefits" position receiving Health Benefits only if that Employee ceases to be covered through the Employee's spouse or civil union partner.

- d) Existing Employees that switch to the NFP will receive a pro-rated amount of leave time for that part of the year worked as a benefits employee. Accrued leave time will not be lost and may be used in accordance with MCIA policies.
- e) Existing Employees that switch to the NFP would do so at their hourly rate in effect at that time. The NFP differential will be added to that rate.
- f) The NFP program is open to full-time Employees who work the normal 40 hour workweek and to those part-time Employees who work 32 or 24 hours per week. The NFP differential will be paid only for time worked.
- g) Employees in this program must participate, if eligible, in the pension plan (P.E.R.S.).
- h) Future wage increases will be based on Article 4 Wages Increases based on the base rate without NFP differential.
- i) The NFP differential will be re-evaluated in January of each year and if necessary, recalculated to a new rate.
- j) Overtime worked beyond the 40 hours per week will be calculated on time worked only and at 1-1/2 times the normal base hourly rate (in range), not including the NFP differential.
- k) All NFP Employees shall be required to work at least half of the scheduled holidays and every other weekend. NFP Employees shall receive only the base rate and NFP differential as set forth in this Section B for holiday hours worked and shall not receive weekend or shift differentials.
- l) Employees in the NFP cannot select specific benefits which they wish to forego. The only options are "with benefits" or "with no benefits".
 - m) Seniority and Union membership are unaffected by this program.

- n) Full-time NFP Employees are required to take 20 days of unpaid leave per year (part-time employees are pro-rated) and must follow the same request policy as benefits employees.
- o) Employees must adhere to the same scheduling requirements as other employees as set forth in MCIA policies and procedures.
- p) The NFP shall be subject to compliance with all applicable Federal, state and local laws and regulations.
- q) NFP employees are not entitled to paid jury duty but may take leave for this purpose without penalty (in addition to the 20 days or prorated days of unpaid leave as stated above) provided that documentation of the jury duty is provided.
- C. <u>Establishment of Pay Periods.</u> Payroll will be made on a bi-weekly basis and will be paid on a Thursday. Payroll will be available at 7:30 a.m. on such date, barring any unforeseen circumstances.
- D. <u>Differentials</u>. The appropriate shift and weekend differentials will be paid to all Employees except NFP and shall be paid when working the appropriate shift.
- (1) Shift Differential. A shift differential shall be paid to Employees working the 3:00 p.m. to 11:30 p.m. shift and the 11:00 p.m. to 7:30 a.m. shift, as follows:

Shift	Amount (\$/hr.)
3:00 p.m 11:30 p.m.	\$ 2.50
11:00 p.m - 7:30 a.m	\$ 2.75

01 .0

Shift differential shall not be paid to the NFP employee.

(2) Weekend differential. A differential shall be paid to Employees working on a Saturday or Sunday at the rate of \$2.50 per hour.

With respect to weekend differential, Employees working the 11:00 p.m. to 7:30 a.m. shift, shall be deemed to be working on Saturday for the shift beginning at 11:00 p.m. on Friday night, shall be deemed to be working on Sunday for the shift

beginning at 11:00 p.m. on Saturday night and shall be deemed to be working on Monday for the shift beginning at 11:00 p.m. on Sunday night.

Weekend differential shall not be paid to the NFP employee.

E. <u>Court Attendance Time by Subpoena</u>. Any Employee attending Court in a Roosevelt Care Center related matter and who is summoned to Court by the MCIA shall be paid for such time. The amount of time spent in Court shall commence when the Employee arrives at Court and shall end at the recess or adjournment of that day's Court session, in each case as reflected on the Employee's time records; provided however, any Employee that is a plaintiff in a matter covered by this provision shall not be paid for time spent in Court on such matter, but may use available personal and vacation time. Employees will be allowed off for personal subpoena. It will be the Employee's responsibility to notify the MCIA immediately for the need to have time off for scheduling purposes. Employees taking time off for personal subpoena must use vacation or personal leave time for such purpose, if available, otherwise such time off shall be without pay.

F. Out of Title Work.

In the event an Employee works out of title with a Supervisor's permission, his/her rate will be \$4.00 per hour in addition to the Employee's regular rate of pay for the time performing the job. During the period the Employee is working out of title, the Employee will not be required to discipline other employees. The Employee will be given an orientation for the job that the Employee is working out of title.

Employees assigned by Roosevelt Care Center Administration as a preceptor shall be paid an additional \$4.00 per hour when performing such assignment. The additional wage rate shall not be added to the Employee's base and shall only be paid for hours worked in such assignment with prior approval. Preceptors shall be full time RNs or LPNs who volunteer for performing the assignment. Preceptors shall be selected by Roosevelt Care Center based on the Employee's good standing and qualification and ability to perform the assignment.

Employees assigned by Roosevelt Care Center Administration as a CPR instructor shall be paid an additional \$4.00 per hour when performing such assignment. The additional wage rate shall not be added to the Employee's base and shall only be paid for hours worked in such assignment with prior approval.

HOURS OF WORK

1. General. Employees shall work eight (8) hour shifts as follows:

7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.

3:00 p.m. to 11:30 p.m.

11:00 p.m. to 7:30 a.m.

During such shift, each Employee will be entitled to thirty (30) minutes for a meal without pay. In the event that an Employee is required to work through the thirty (30) minute break period provided for meals (or a portion thereof), and same has been previously authorized by the Employee's immediate supervisor (or other authorized personnel), such Employee will be paid for such thirty (30) minutes (or portion thereof) at time and one-half (1-1/2) their base wage.

Time worked will be verified by the Employee's punch on the electronic punch system. Each Employee shall not leave work until all documentation required to be completed with respect to the activities occurring during the completed shift (and any other required documentation) has been completed subject to the provisions of Article 7 Paragraph 1.

For the 11:00 p.m. to 7:30 a.m. shift, the weekend will be Friday and Saturday.

Flexible work schedules may be made available as long as current employees are not displaced, subject to approval by the MCIA.

The above hours are to remain in effect until mutually changed.

2. Every Other Weekend Off. The Roosevelt Care Center Nursing Directors or their designees will post a working schedule which will assign Employees every other weekend off. However, the MCIA may schedule Employees electing to do so, to work one day of every weekend or other alternatives so long as the weekend time is satisfied and provided that the alternative schedule does not involuntarily disrupt another Employee's schedule. The Union will be provided with a list of exceptions. In the event

an Employee's weekend rotation schedule is changed, the Employee will be provided with thirty (30) days written notice. Employees who are usually scheduled to work on Monday through Friday will not be required to work weekends. If such Employees volunteer to work on a weekend, such Employee shall be entitled to overtime pay if the employee works over forty (40) hours during such week.

- 3. The MCIA agrees to make every reasonable effort to provide staff nurses (as well as other critical personnel) with transportation to and/or from work during snow emergencies. Such transportation may be provided on behalf of the MCIA by the Middlesex County Office of Emergency Management.
- 4. Work Schedule. The Roosevelt Care Center Directors of Nursing or their designees shall draft a monthly work schedule which will be posted at least two weeks in advance. Once posted, no changes can occur except with the consent of the RCC Directors of Nursing or their designees and the Employee.
- 5. Punctuality. It is understood that all Employees will be punctual on starting times, taking of and returning from rest periods, lunch periods, and quitting times. Any Employee not observing working hours as stated shall be subject to disciplinary action.
- 6. There will be no rotation of shifts. If an Employee makes a choice to rotate shifts, it will be voluntary so as not to impact the other staff. The Union will be provided with a list of all employee schedules that have chosen to rotate shifts.
- 7. Any employee special schedules will comply with Article 45. Utilization of Employees.

BREAKS

All Employees working their regular scheduled eight (8) hour shift shall receive two (2) fifteen (15) minute breaks.

All Employees working their regular scheduled eight (8) hour shift shall receive a thirty (30) minute meal break without pay. If relief is not provided to the Employee or if the Employee is required to remain in the unit working during the meal break, the Employee shall be paid.

Employees may leave the facility during their breaks provided that the Employee punches in and out.

OVERTIME

1. General. All Employees shall be expected to complete their work in the time allotted for the normal working day. An Employee shall notify and receive prior approval from a supervisor, prior to staying overtime to complete mandatory paperwork. Employees requested to work overtime beyond the forty (40) hour work week will be paid time and one-half (1-1/2) their base wage for the amount of hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.

Overtime shall be scheduled on a seniority basis and on a reasonably equalized basis where such work is in the nature and normal routine of the job. Seniority shall mean date of hire in that title and current uninterrupted service. The MCIA will use the Utilization of Employees Clause.

Personal leave, vacation leave and bereavement leave shall be considered hours worked for overtime purposes.

The NFP will receive overtime after forty (40) hours worked at the rate of one and a half time base wage rate (without NFP differential).

- 2. Call Back Time. If an Employee is called back to work after completion of a regular shift or workday, such Employee shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at time and one-half (1-1/2) times base pay. The call back commences when an Employee reports to work and ends when the Employee leaves work (in each case as reflected by the Employee's electronic punch).
- 3. Unless mutually agreed upon between an Employee working a regularly assigned shift and the MCIA, Employees working overtime will be assigned to an open position and will not displace Employees working regular assigned shifts.

MERIT INCREASES - PROMOTIONS-NEW EMPLOYEES

- 1. Merit Increases. It is understood and agreed that pursuant to the intent of the Employer Employee Act, all wage increases are limited to the negotiated amounts set forth in this Agreement or otherwise arrived at by means of the bargaining process. The only exceptions to this policy will be represented by promotion to a higher position. In such cases, the promoted employee shall receive a salary that is at least equal to the minimum salary payable for the position, as set forth in the salary range for such position for new employees.
- 2. New Employees. Although it will be the normal practice to hire new Employees at the first step of the range, there might be occasional exceptions for recruitment purposes. The MCIA reserves the right to hire up to the fourth step of a range under certain conditions. Individual nurses hired above the 1st step would be in accordance with the following schedule:

1 - 3 years of pertinent and recent experience - Step 1

3 - 6 years of pertinent and recent experience - Step 2

6 - 9 years of pertinent and recent experience - Step 3

9 + years of pertinent and recent experience - Step 4

An Employee working at Roosevelt Care Center at the time a new employee is hired under this exception who has the same or more experience of the type of the new hire and who would be bypassed by a new hire above the minimum rate will receive the same base salary rate as the new employee commencing with such new employee's successful completion of probationary period.

SEASONAL EMPLOYEES (SUMMER HELP)

Seasonal employees will receive indirect benefits which will be limited to Worker's Compensation and those other benefits provided by law. Employees in this category will not receive vacation days, sick days, holidays, personal days, bereavement days, Health Benefits, or any other direct or indirect contractual benefits.

HEALTH BENEFITS

1. Chapter 78 Required Contributions.

Commencing January 1, 2014, except as may be otherwise specifically set forth in this Article 10, all part-time and full time Employees will, at a minimum, be required to make a percentage contribution toward the cost of their health coverage premiums for medical, prescription and dental benefits in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 78 of the Public Laws of 2011 of the State of New Jersey ("Chapter 78") and or Chapter 2 of the Public Laws of 2010 (Chapter"2") (as applicable and collective, "Health Benefits Contributions"). Full time and part-time Employees entitled to Health Benefits hired prior to January 1, 2014 will contribute toward the cost of their health coverage starting at year one of the charts contained in Chapter 78, progressing to years two, three and four of the charts during the term of this contract or make a Chapter 2 contribution, as applicable. Full time and part-time Employees entitled to benefits hired on or after January 1, 2014 will contribute toward the cost of their health coverage starting at year four of the charts contained in Chapter 78 or will make a Chapter 2 contribution, as applicable. The Chapter 78 charts are attached as Schedule A.

2. Medical Coverage.

A. Traditional Plan. All full time Employees and Employees' eligible family (as defined by the Middlesex County Health Insurance Fund), who currently have traditional medical coverage, shall be covered by traditional medical coverage. Major medical coverage for eligible Employees and family shall also be supplied. The Traditional Plan is no longer offered to those not currently in the Plan.

At such time as the contracts for medical coverage presently in effect through the Middlesex County Health Insurance Fund ("Health Insurance Fund") expire and new contracts are negotiated and executed by the Health Insurance Fund, the MCIA will subject any changes resulting from such new contract which results in a decrease in coverage to collective bargaining with the Union. Any changes resulting from such new

contracts which result in an increase in the cost of such coverage may, at the option of the MCIA, be subject to collective bargaining with the Union.

B Health Maintenance Organization (HMO). Health Maintenance Organizations or the Health Care Choice Plan will be available to all other eligible Employees.

- C. Employees hired on or after March 1, 2009 will be provided with the base medical insurance plan but the Employee may choose other plans offered. If the Employee chooses a plan other than the base plan offered, the Employee shall be responsible for the cost of the plan in excess of the base plan cost in addition to the Employee's required Health Benefits Contributions. The cost will be paid by the Employee by way of payroll deduction.
- 3. Dental Plan. The MCIA will provide dental coverage for all Employees that is substantially equivalent to or superior to the coverage currently provided by the MCIA. The Employee's cost of the dental coverage shall be paid through payroll deduction at the applicable Health Benefits Contributions.
- 4. Drug Prescription Plan. All Employees and families will be covered by a Drug Prescription Program provided by the MCIA. Such Employees will make a Health Benefits Contribution toward the cost of the coverage of such plan. In addition to the Health Benefits Contribution to the cost of the Drug Prescription Plan required to be paid by the Employees, there will be a co-pay of \$10.00 per prescription drug to be paid by the Employee for standard brand, non-generic drugs and there will be a co-pay of \$5.00 for generic drugs.
- 5. Vision Care Program. All full time Employees who have been employed for more than sixty (60) continuous days shall be covered by the Vision Care Program. Eligible Employees shall be entitled to one (1) reimbursement during a two (2) year period. The reimbursement will be limited to the following allowances:
 - a) eye examination \$50.00
 - b) lenses and frames or contact lenses \$60.00

This reimbursement will not exceed and is limited to a total of \$110.00 for a combined cost for the above during a two (2) year period.

The Vision Care Program shall apply only to the full time Employee and not to an Employee's family members. Full time Employees shall present the vision care bills and proper documentation to the MCIA for reimbursement.

Part time Employees employed prior to September 1, 2005 working at least thirty-two (32) hours per week shall be reimbursed a maximum of 90% of the \$110.00 reimbursement. Part time Employees working at least twenty-four (24) to thirty-two (32) hours per week shall be reimbursed a maximum of 80% of the \$110.00 reimbursement.

Part time Employees employed on or after September 1, 2005 who work at least thirty-two (32) hours per week, shall be reimbursed a maximum of 80% of the \$110.00 reimbursement. Part time Employees employed on or after September 1, 2005 who work at least twenty-four (24) to thirty-two (32) hours per week shall be reimbursed a maximum of 60% of the \$110.00 reimbursement.

- 6. New Jersey State Temporary Disability Program. The MCIA will provide disability insurance through the New Jersey State Temporary Disability Benefits Program, in accordance with P. L. 1980, c. 18. State law requires contribution from the employer and the employee.
- 7. Payment of Health Benefits Coverage for Retirees. The MCIA agrees to provide medical and prescription coverage to a retired employee and his/her dependents, if any and only for such dependents at the time of such retirement, if such Employee has accrued twenty-five (25) years of credited service in a State or locally Administered Retirement System and retires from the MCIA with not less than ten (10) years of service at the MCIA. Any retiring Employee who meets such eligibility requirements will be required to contribute to the cost of the Health Benefits coverage hereunder pursuant to applicable law.

ARTICLE 11 HOLIDAYS

The paid holiday schedule will be as follows:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

Full time and part time Employees shall observe and be paid for holidays in accordance with MCIA's posted observance schedule for such holidays. All full time or part time Employees with the exception of NFP employees working on Martin Luther King Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Veteran's Day and the Day after Thanksgiving Day, will receive regular pay at straight time for hours worked plus holiday pay for holidays worked at time and one-half regular pay. Any full time or part time Employees with the exception of NFP employees working on New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, will receive regular pay at straight time for the holiday plus holiday pay for the hours worked at two times regular pay. Holiday hours will not exceed standard shift of eight (8) hours. For employees working the 11:00 p.m. to 7:30 a.m. shift, a holiday shall be deemed to begin at 11:00 p.m. on the eve of the holiday.

All full time or part time employees scheduled to be off on a holiday shall receive their regular time rate and no compensatory day. Holidays not worked will be counted as hours worked for purposes of overtime. Any hours paid for at overtime rates shall not be pyramided or used again for computing other overtime pay in excess of the normal work week or for any other pay.

It is agreed to and understood that Employees will be subject to working the scheduled day before and the scheduled day after the holiday in order to qualify for holiday pay. Exceptions to this provision will be authorized absences and substantiated illness.

Employees shall provide the MCIA or its designated representative with thirty (30) days written notice concerning holiday requests. The MCIA or its designated representative will respond within two (2) weeks as to whether the holiday will be granted. If not responded to within the two (2) week period, such holiday will be deemed to be approved. Approval will be determined on a seniority basis at the time of the request. In the event an Employee works on a specified holiday one year, the Employee shall be granted the holiday off the next year, regardless of seniority, provided that written notice requesting the holiday is given to the MCIA or its designated representative at least thirty (30) days prior to the holiday.

Employees shall be required to work a minimum of five (5) holidays per year. Special circumstances will be reviewed by the MCIA for any Employee requesting to work less than five (5) holidays. Notwithstanding the foregoing, employees with twenty-five (25) years of service or more at Roosevelt Care Center will not be required to work a holiday but may volunteer to work a holiday. In the event such employee determines to work a holiday, the employee must provide the MCIA or its designated representative with thirty (30) days prior written notice.

Employees regularly scheduled to work Monday through Friday may volunteer to work a holiday.

If a holiday falls during an Employee's vacation an additional vacation day may be taken.

PERSONAL DAYS

All full time Employees shall have four (4) paid personal days per year. Part time Employees shall be entitled to paid personal days prorated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work per week over forty (40) hours. Personal days may not be carried over to the following year. Any personal days accrued and earned but unused by year-end shall be forfeited.

Personal days may be taken on separate days or consecutively; however, the Employee will give the MCIA or its designated representative three (3) days written notice for each personal day to be taken, whenever possible. There will be no refusal of time off with proper notice.

Personal time off will be considered as hours worked for the purpose of calculating overtime.

Employees of the Union shall be permitted to use no more than two (2) personal days in the last quarter of any calendar year and no personal days may be scheduled between December 15th and December 31st of any year.

If termination of employment occurs before year-end and the Employee has taken more personal leave than they are entitled to, the per diem rate of pay for the excess days shall be deducted from the final pay.

BEREAVEMENT

All full time Employees (after ninety (90) continuous days of employment with the MCIA) shall be entitled to receive a maximum of four (4) full time days leave with pay in the event of the death of his/her spouse, child or grandchild, and a maximum of three (3) days leave with pay in the event of the death of a mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, brother or sister.

It is understood and agreed that bereavement leave will be communicated to the Department Head by the Employee, and said Employee shall be granted up to three (3) or four (4) days leave of absence, as applicable, consisting of the working days next following the day of death, or, the time of bereavement leave will be allowed to be taken within a ten (10) day period following the date of death at the discretion of the Employee with a prior notification to and authorization from his/her Department Head. It is further understood that there will be no fragmentation of the bereavement leave. The leave must be taken by the designated days once the option is taken.

The Employee will be compensated for time lost during said period from his/her regularly scheduled work, not to exceed the time set forth herein; provided, however, if long-distance travel is required (as evidenced by written documentation provided by the Employee and approved by the Employee's immediate supervisor), the Employee may utilize a reasonable amount of additional time to return to work by utilizing any accrued and earned unused vacation or personal days. Time off without pay for this purpose will not be subject to the attendance policy.

Part time Employees shall be entitled to be reavement leave based on a percentage of hours normally scheduled to work over a forty (40) hour week.

Paid bereavement leave will be considered as time worked for purposes of calculating overtime.

VACATIONS

The MCIA will recognize the length of prior continuous employment of employees employed by the County of Middlesex (the "County") at Roosevelt Care Center and continuously employed by the MCIA thereafter in determining years of service for vacation leave purposes. Full-time Employees hired after the effective date hereof shall not be granted paid vacation leave until completion of six (6) months of continuous employment with the MCIA. At such time, up to five (5) days of vacation leave may be taken after completion of the six (6) months and the remaining time can be taken after the end of the first year of employment. For part time Employees hired after the effective date hereof, the number of vacation days that may be taken after completion of the first six (6) months shall be prorated based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work per week over forty (40) hours. All Employees shall accrue paid vacation leave based upon the following schedule:

Years of Service	Amount of <u>Vacation</u>
0 - 5 years	10 days
6 - 10 years	15 days
11 - 15 years	20 days
16 - 20 years	25 days
21 - 25 years	30 days

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent an Employee currently receives more vacation leave than permitted by the above schedule, such Employee shall continue at such level until reaching the next level.

Part time Employees working twenty-four (24) hours or more per week shall be entitled to paid vacation leave on the basis of the above schedule on a pro-rata basis calculated on the basis of a percentage of hours normally scheduled to work over forty (40) hours per week.

Vacation requests must be submitted in writing to the MCIA or its designated representative at least thirty (30) days prior to the requested vacation date. When submitted, a written response will be given within two (2) weeks. If the request is not responded to within the two (2) week period, the request will be deemed approved. The MCIA shall provide notice to Employees in November to remind Employees to schedule vacations beginning January of the following year and in May for the remainder of that year beginning in July. Vacations shall be granted by seniority at the time of the request.

If termination of employment occurs before year-end and the Employee has taken more vacation time than they are entitled to, the pro rated rate of pay for the excess vacation days shall be deducted from the final pay.

An Employee may carry over only up to one (1) year's worth of vacation time into the next calendar year and this may only be done with the prior written permission of the supervisor.

Vacation time off will be considered as time worked for purposes of calculating overtime.

In the event an Employee has submitted a vacation request that has been approved, the Employee may cancel their vacation in an emergency situation without penalty subject to approval of the Administration.

SICK LEAVE

An Employee shall not be granted paid sick leave until completion of ninety (90) days of continuous employment. Upon completion of ninety (90) days of continuous employment, such Employee shall be granted paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per month (i.e., twelve (12) days per year).

Any Employee that is unable to report to work shall notify the main switchboard operator at the facility of such Employee's intention to take sick leave and the switchboard operator shall then report such absence to the Staffing Office. Such notice must be provided at least two (2) hours prior to the start of the scheduled shift. When an Employee calls out sick, they will contact the Nursing Supervisor on duty. The Employee calling out will designate either a sick day or emergency personal day. The Supervisor will submit a completed time request form to the appropriate department when the Employee calls out. Roosevelt Care Center cannot designate vacation or personal days unless with the Employee's permission. Any sick leave that extends beyond three (3) consecutive work days will require a doctor's statement or other documentation in order to be paid for such sick days. If an Employee takes off without available sick time and does not designate a vacation or personal day, the MCIA may apply the MCIA's attendance policy if for just cause.

If separation of employment occurs before the end of the year and more sick leave has been taken than earned, the pro rated rate of pay for the excess sick leave days shall be deducted from the Employee's final pay.

Days lost due to injury or illness arising out of or caused by employment for which the Employee has a claim for Workmen's Compensation, which has been approved by the appropriate MCIA authorities or sustained by an appropriate Court of competent jurisdiction, shall not be charged to sick leave.

During the time that the Human Resources Office is determining whether an injury or illness results from the Employee's working conditions, an Employee may take any

accumulated sick leave. In the event a leave with pay is granted, the sick leave used by the Employee will be recredited to the Employee and the sick leave injury will be retroactive to the date which is determined as the effective date by the MCIA.

Sick days may be carried over.

Sick days will be based on a calendar year.

Use of sick leave shall not be treated as a disciplinary matter unless patterned, abusive or used in connection with other leave time.

Part time Employees regularly scheduled to work twenty-four (24) hours or more per week shall be entitled to a prorated number of sick days based on the percentage of hours regularly scheduled to work over a forty (40) hour work week.

If an Employee chooses not to use advanced sick leave or other paid leave to cover sick time, the MCIA may apply the applicable attendance policy, if for just cause.

ARTICLE 16 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

DISCIPLINE BY DISCHARGE; GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Stewards will be notified prior to a meeting with the MCIA as to the nature of an investigation or discipline prior to the MCIA meeting with an Employee.

No Employee will be disciplined by discharge without just cause. Unless certain violations are considered inherently wrong and require prompt severe action, disciplinary action will normally be taken in the progressive measures. Progressive discipline shall be the application of corrective measures by increasing degrees, designed to motivate the Employee to undertake the required improvement. All other things being equal, the sequence and/or severity of the disciplinary action shall be taken uniformly. Disciplinary action shall be instituted uniformly to the extent all other things are equal.

Any alleged violation of this Agreement or any dispute with regard to its meaning or application may constitute a "grievance." Disputes concerning matters involving the sole and exclusive discretion of the MCIA shall not constitute a "grievance." Resolution of any grievance shall be made in accordance with the following procedures:

- Step 1. The Employee's Shop Steward shall present the Employee's grievance or dispute in writing to the Administrator within ten (10) working days of its occurrence. The Employee's immediate supervisor, the Director of Nursing and the Director of Human Resources shall hear the grievance, attempt to resolve the matter and shall respond to the Employee within five (5) working days after the hearing.
- Step 2. If the grievance has not been resolved, the grievance shall be presented in writing by the Employee to the Administrator within five (5) working days after the Employee's receipt of the response provided at the end of Step 1.
- Step. 3. If the grievance still remains unresolved by the Administrator or unanswered, it shall be sent in writing by the Employee representative to the Executive Director of the MCIA, or his/her designee, within seven (7) working days after the response of the Administrator under Step 2 is due. The Executive Director of the MCIA, or his/her designee, shall respond in writing to the Employee within ten (10) working

days after receipt. The Union President, or his/her designee, may request a meeting with the MCIA Executive Director or his/her designee within five (5) working days after receiving the answer from the MCIA Executive Director or his/her designee, under Step 3.

Step 4. If the grievance has not been resolved between the parties, either one or both may move the grievance to arbitration within thirty (30) days of receiving the answer from the MCIA Executive Director or his/her designee under Step 3. The American Arbitration Association shall serve as the arbitrator for any grievance to be submitted for arbitration. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties. The fees and expenses of the arbitration shall be paid equally by the Union and the MCIA.

Any time period referenced in the grievance procedure may be extended by mutual agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, grievances concerning terminations, if timely filed within ten (10) days of the occurrence, shall proceed immediately to Step 3.

The Steps set forth above and extension of time may be waived by mutual agreement.

Local Representatives may have paid leave for the purpose of processing grievances and attending scheduled grievance meetings with management and for reporting to the grievant the status of the grievance.

ADHERENCE TO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RELATION COMMISSION

The MCIA and the Union understand and agree that all rules promulgated by the Public Employees Relation Commission concerning any matter whatever not specifically covered in this Agreement shall be binding upon both parties.

PART TIME EMPLOYEES

Part time Employees (including provisional employees but excluding seasonal employees) shall be entitled to only those benefits set forth herein. Part time Employees shall be entitled to receive shift differential (as provided in paragraph 4(c) hereof) and weekend differential (as provided in paragraph 4(d) hereof).

For purposes of the terms and conditions of employment described herein, "part time employee" means an Employee who is normally scheduled to work at least twenty-four (24) hours per week. For purposes of these terms and conditions of employment, where entitled to benefits herein, Employees who are regularly scheduled to work between twenty-four (24) hours and forty (40) hours per week shall be entitled to receive the benefits and coverages on a pro-rated basis under this Agreement to the extent set forth herein. Employees regularly scheduled to work less than twenty-four (24) hours per week shall receive no benefits.

Part time Employees regularly working a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours per week shall receive holiday pay pursuant to Article XI.

ECONOMY LAYOFFS

The MCIA may make layoffs as may be required for proper operations of Roosevelt Care Center, provided, however, that the Union will be provided with forty-five (45) days advance notice. Such layoffs shall be made on the basis of merit/performance evaluations (past and current as of time of layoff decision). In the event that two (2) or more individuals receive relatively equivalent merit/performance evaluations, such economic layoff decisions as to such employees will be implemented on the basis of inverse order of seniority.

Lay offs shall be instituted in inverse order of seniority by job title (if able to perform the job). The Union will be notified as soon as possible of any potential layoff. The MCIA agrees to discuss with the Union the economic and non-economic impact of any potential layoff.

ACCUMULATED SICK TIME PAYMENT UPON RETIREMENT

All Employees shall be entitled upon retirement as defined by PERS to receive a lump sum payment, as supplemental compensation, in an amount equal to one-half payment for every full day of earned and unused accumulated sick leave, which is credited to him/her on the MCIA's employment records; provided, however, that the amount of such lump sum payment shall not exceed \$15,000.

DISABILITY INSURANCE

The MCIA agrees to provide disability insurance through the New Jersey State Temporary Disability Benefits Program effective January 1, 1981, in accordance with P. L. 1980, Chapter 18, approved March 26, 1980. It is understood that said law requires contributions from the employer and the Employee.

Short term disability is through New Jersey State Disability. Long term disability is available through PERS after ten (10) years of employment. Information regarding both disability plans may be acquired through the Human Resources Office.

Employees applying for State TDI benefits are required to exhaust accumulated sick leave benefits from prior years and all sick leave benefits earned at the rate of one day per month during the current year.

WORKERS COMPENSATION

Workers Compensation is provided by the New Jersey State Workers Compensation or by the MCIA's workers compensation self-insurance fund approved by the State of New Jersey. Information is available at the Human Resources Office. Workers Compensation Coverage provided by the MCIA shall comply with all rules mandated by the statutes of the State of New Jersey. Any change in the insurance carrier shall be communicated to the Union.

PERSONNEL FILES

The MCIA and the Union agree that the MCIA may retain and utilize the personnel files in existence for Employees.

Written reprimands or derogatory reports entered in an Employee's personnel file will not be considered by the MCIA with respect to disciplinary actions to be taken, grievance proceedings to be held and/or performance evaluations to be undertaken subsequent to the date of entry of such written reprimand or derogatory report if and when that Employee completes twenty-four (24) months of continuous service without further incidence of reprimand or derogatory report.

Unsatisfactory performance evaluations entered in an Employee's personnel file will not be considered by the MCIA with respect to disciplinary actions to be taken, grievance proceedings to be held or future performance evaluations if and when that employee receives two (2) successive satisfactory performance evaluations within a twenty-four (24) month period.

Any disciplinary information (i.e., written reprimands, derogatory reports and/or unsatisfactory performance evaluations) entered in such personnel files prior to June 14, 1997 shall not be utilized by the MCIA with respect to any disciplinary actions to be taken, grievance procedure to be held and/or performance evaluations to be undertaken subsequent to June 14, 1997. Employees that had been employed and represented by the Union as of June 14, 1997 are known as Original Employees.

Employees shall have the right to inspect their own individual personnel files upon request to the MCIA. The MCIA recognizes and agrees to permit this review and examination at any reasonable time. The Employee shall have the right to define, explain, or object, in writing, to anything found in his or her personnel file. This writing shall become a part of the Employee's personnel file. Written reprimands or derogatory reports shall be shown to the Employee and the Union Representative before they become part of the Employee's personnel file. Union Representatives shall not be

entitled to confidential, medical or psychological information concerning Employees without the Employee's written consent and waiver to release such information to the Union.

All reports shall be shown to an Employee before they become part of the Employee's personnel file with a copy to the Union Representative present.

FAMILY LEAVE

- A) The provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") 29 U.S.C. §2601 et seq. and the New Jersey Family Leave Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11B-1 et seq.) ("FLA") shall apply to all Employees. In addition, each eligible Employee will be entitled to up to twelve (12) additional months unpaid leave after accrued and unused sick leave and vacation leave have been used for family and medical leave. In the event of additional approved leaves, the payment by Employee of the continuation of medical benefits will be made available under COBRA.
- B) Upon an Employee's return from family leave under FMLA or FLA, the Employee shall be reinstated to the Employee's former position or a position that is comparable in terms of pay, seniority, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment. Notwithstanding the above, reinstatement is not required where a reduction in force has occurred. Upon an Employee's return from leave, whether within the period provided by FMLA or FLA or at the end of such additional time as provided above, the MCIA will maintain the characterization of employment (i.e., original or New Employee) as was in effect the date the leave commenced.
- C) Upon an Employee's return from the first twelve (12) months family medical leave, an additional twelve (12) months unpaid leave period will be granted. The Employee may not be reinstated to the Employee's former position or a position that is "comparable."

Medical Benefits pursuant to the Collective Bargaining Agreement will continue during FMLA or FLA. In the event of additional approved leaves, the payment of the continuation of medical benefits will be made available as and if permitted under COBRA at the Employee's cost. The cost of Health Benefits will be paid for by MCIA only during FMLA or FLA (first twelve weeks), subject to the Employee's required Chapter 78 contribution for such Health Benefits.

One week vacation may be saved by an Employee for vacation upon return to work.

Adoptive leave will be given pursuant to FMLA and FLA.

The MCIA will not require Employees to exhaust paid vacation benefits while on sick leave or a leave resulting from an initial FMLA or FLA qualifying event. The MCIA will not require Employees to exhaust unearned annual sick leave benefits while on sick leave or a leave resulting from an initial FMLA or FLA qualifying event.

MILITARY LEAVE

Any Employee who is a member of the National Guard, Navy, Air National Guard or a reserve component of any of the Armed Forces for the United States and is required to engage in field training as is authorized by law may take a military leave of absence without pay for the period of such training. Such leave of absence shall be in addition to any accrued and unused vacation leave. In such event, any affected Employee may return to his/her job/position at the end of the required military leave and such Employee will, for all purposes, be considered to be continuously employed by the MCIA during the period of such military leave.

ARTICLE 26 JURY DUTY

Should an Employee be called to serve as a juror, before any court, he/she shall be paid for the time spent on jury duty on the basis of such Employee's regular salary up to two (2) weeks. If the Employee is scheduled longer than the two (2) weeks, the Employee may request the Human Resources Office to review the leave period.

JOB VACANCY - JOB BIDDING

In the event the MCIA finds the need or plans a newly created job or when a job vacancy exists within the Union, the MCIA will notify the Local President and Local Secretary of the Union and promptly post the job for bid on appropriate bulletin boards. All notices shall contain pertinent information including job title, job description, rate of pay, department, unit assignment and shift, and shall remain posted for five (5) working days. Thereupon, the bid shall be closed and the job awarded on the basis of seniority, qualification and ability to perform the job. If one or more bids are received and all things are equal, seniority shall prevail.

With reference to filling vacancies, employees in the line of work involved shall have first consideration in order of seniority.

The MCIA will present and discuss with an Employee, or at his/her request and with his/her Representative, the reasons for selecting an Employee of less seniority for a higher job title on the basis of ability and qualifications rather than on the basis of seniority.

When a job vacancy develops as a result of termination, promotion, or other changes of status of any Employee covered by this Agreement, or when a new position is created, the MCIA will inform the Employees and the Union of such vacancy by posting on the bulletin board and copying the Union Local President and Local Secretary. The following information will be included in such posted bid: job title, job description, pay range and department or unit assignment and shift.

All applicants not selected will be notified in writing within ten (10) days by the Director of Nursing stating the reasons why he or she was not selected.

Job vacancies shall be filled within fourteen (14) days or as soon as practicable after an Employee is selected to fill the vacancy unless a longer period of time is agreed

to among the MCIA, the Union and the Employee. The Local President and Local Secretary will be notified upon the award of a posted position.

There will be no individual agreements between bargaining unit employees and the MCIA without the approval of the Union.

In the event of a job vacancy and the job must be filled immediately in order to meet an emergency or safeguard the health, safety or well being of the residents or Employees, the MCIA will post such job but may fill the job temporarily before the expiration of the posting period and placement period above described.

The MCIA may temporarily transfer an Employee from their current position to another position which he or she is capable of performing for a period of thirty (30) days by least seniority of capable employees. If the position is not filled during a fourteen (14) day period or such longer period of time as is agreed to among the MCIA, the Union and the Employee, the MCIA may require the Employee to remain in the position.

The MCIA will provide advance notice to the Union of any non voluntary permanent transfers of Union members, to discuss the impact of such transfers with the Union and to post resulting new openings for bid prior to transfer.

RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF THE UNION

- 1. The MCIA agrees to make available to the Union all public information concerning the MCIA. All requests shall be made through the Human Resources Office who shall forward such request to the MCIA's Public Information Officer. Information will be given to the Union in a timely manner as not to impede the Union in any investigation. With respect to information which may be necessary for the Union to process any grievance or complaint, all requests shall be made through the Human Resources Office.
- 2. The Union Local President and Local Secretary shall have copies of all Roosevelt Care Center and MCIA Personnel Policies supplied by the MCIA. Furthermore, all additions, changes and deletions shall be provided to the Local President and Local Secretary prior to the effective date of implementation.
- 3. Whenever any Representative of the Union or any Employee is scheduled by the parties to participate in negotiations or grievance procedures to meet with management, he/she shall be paid for such time.

The Union will have the use of designated bulletin boards to disseminate Union information.

The President of the Union shall be the chairperson to all Union Committees.

The Union will provide to the MCIA yearly a list of names, addresses and telephone numbers of the Officers and Stewards of the Local.

If a Union Representative who works 3:00 p.m.-11:30 p.m. or 11:00 p.m.-7:30 a.m. attends union meetings during the day, time arrangements will be made for coverage on the regular shift, with no penalty, if needed and they will be paid for time spent in such meetings.

SAFETY

The MCIA agrees to assure the safety and adequacy of all work areas and equipment provided for the Employees. Where safety equipment is provided, it is the responsibility of the Employee to utilize such equipment.

There shall be a Safety Committee with the President of the Union or his/her designee. The Union will appoint two (2) members (including the President or his/her designee) of the Union to the Safety Committee. Accident issues will be discussed at the Safety Committee including intervention methods to prevent accidents in the future and recommendations to assure safety and adequacy of all working areas. Employees will be paid for time to attend such Safety Committee meetings. The function of the committee shall be to advise the appropriate authority concerning occupational safety, health and security matters. In the discharge of its functions, the Safety Committee shall: review existing practices and rules relating to occupational safety and health; recommend actions to provide adequate security to protect employees working alone on evenings and night shift; recommend changes in existing practices and rules; review accidents, issues and recommend corrective actions and preventive measures; assure safety and adequacy of all working areas and equipment; and review responsibility of the Employee to use the equipment provided. The Union shall appoint a member to the Safety Committee. MCIA will provide a safe environment at all times.

When an Employee feels staffing levels are not adequate, the MCIA will address with the Union the needs of the Employees to secure a safe environment.

MEALS

All Employees shall be provided with one-half hour (½ hour) per shift for meals without pay. The MCIA shall not provide free meals. Employees may purchase meals, if desired, at discounted rates arranged with the food service company.

MILEAGE

An allowance shall be paid to Employees using their personal automobiles in connection with services performed at the request of an MCIA authorized representative. Such mileage allowance shall be equal to the amount permitted by the Internal Revenue Service and shall be paid retroactively to the date such per mile rate is established/changed by the Internal Revenue Service.

EMPLOYEE'S PHYSICALS

The MCIA shall pay for the state mandated physical and tests required by the State of New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services (DHSS) to be in compliance with DHSS Regulations. A physical will be required upon hire and yearly PPD's will be required. Hepatitis B vaccines shall be made available to Employees.

NURSE PRACTICE COMMITTEE

A Nurse Practice Committee consisting of four (4) members of the nursing staff will meet on a monthly basis with the Nursing Director(s) on a date and time mutually agreed upon. The President of the Local and/or designee or International Representative may attend such meeting. The Committee will have two (2) agendas:

- 1. One for discussion of issues affecting nurse practice;
- 2 One for discussion of improvements and procedure in patient care.

Agendas should be submitted in advance from both parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes to the agenda may be made by the MCIA and/or Union, if such changes represent a comparable substitute for or supplement to the foregoing provisions. In such event, the MCIA or Union shall provide prior written notice of such changes prior to the meeting. The Director and Union will give a written response within thirty (30) days of meeting to address open issues.

Employees who are authorized to attend such committee meetings may do so with pay.

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

All of the rights, power, and authority possessed by the MCIA prior to the date of the signing of this Agreement are retained exclusively by the MCIA, subject only to such limitations as are specifically provided in this Agreement.

SEMINARS

All Employees attending a seminar or continuing education class related to performance of their duties at Roosevelt Care Center or with respect to continuing nursing education generally, if assigned by the Administrator(s), or their designees, shall be paid for the amount of time spent attending such seminar and such time shall be counted as hours worked, as reflected on the Employee's time card.

With prior written approval of the administration, continuing education, such as CEU certification, etc., classes shall be paid and the Employee shall receive the day's pay with expenditures if so required and approved by RCC.

REQUIRED LICENSURES

Any licensing, including State mandated finger printing, of the full-time or part-time Employees of the Union employed at Roosevelt Care Center (at the time of licensing) required by the State of New Jersey shall be paid for by the MCIA. The MCIA shall not be required to pay for licensing for NFP employees.

The MCIA will make available to Employees at the MCIA's cost access to on-line program(s) to receive continuing education units (CEU's) mandated by the State for licensing requirements. For any Employees unable to access the on-line program, the MCIA agrees to review individual requests for re-imbursement for alternate methods for obtaining CEU compliance. The MCIA shall not be required to pay for CEU's for NFP employees.

ARTICLE 37 RULES OF THE MCIA

All rules and regulations promulgated by the MCIA shall be observed by the Employees.

EDUCATIONAL LEAVE

When or where possible, in light of staffing requirements and openings, the MCIA shall provide an Employee returning from education leave with their same shift. However, the foregoing shall not constitute a guarantee that the Employee will be able to return to the same shift.

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

The MCIA agrees to establish a fund available to the Union to assist Employees in attending educational or training activities which will, in the judgment of the respective Administrator, serve the best interests of the facility. The MCIA agrees to make available to the Union \$17,000.00 per year of this Agreement for such fund. Any unused amounts of the \$17,000 in any year can be carried over to following years. The fund can be used by the Union for the LPN to RN program.

Geriatric Certification. Reimbursement for geriatric certification will be paid from this fund.

An application for tuition reimbursement will be submitted to the respective Roosevelt Care Center Administrator to determine the appropriateness of the reimbursement as it relates to this Article. If the application is approved by the Administrator, the documentation will be forwarded to the designated Union representative who will approve the financial disbursement of the reimbursement amount based on the Union's policy of dispersing education funds. Once approved by the designated Union representative, the documentation will be returned to the Administrator for processing in the next pay period of the Employee following submission.

UNION CONFERENCE DAYS

Each Union Executive Board member shall be granted eighteen (18) days per calendar year to attend a Union conference or convention. If attended during scheduled working days, the Union shall request these days at least one (1) week in advance when possible. It is also understood that the total cost in salary of nine (9) days will be the Union's responsibility and nine (9) days will be paid by the MCIA.

It is further agreed to and understood that one (1) Union Executive Board member on the 3:00 p.m. to 11:30 p.m. shift will be excused from his/her normal work duties, with pay, for a period not to exceed three (3) hours, twelve (12) times per calendar year, for the purpose of attending union meetings.

A Union person will be a local executive board member or person designated by the board.

NO STRIKE OR LOCK-OUT

Neither the Union nor any Employee or the MCIA shall interfere, instigate, promote, sponsor, engage in, or condone any strike, lockout, or concerted work stoppage. In the event that any person violates the terms of the no strike clause, the MCIA shall have the right to discharge or otherwise discipline such person for the breach of the no strike clause. The sole question shall be whether the Employee has engaged in the prohibited activity.

COMPUTATION OR TYPOGRAPHICAL ERRORS/AMENDMENTS

During the term of this Agreement, computation or typographical errors may be corrected from the date of determination. These errors may be corrected by the Union or by the MCIA by mutual consent retroactive to the date of occurrence.

The MCIA and the Union agree that any future interim or permanent changes to this Agreement which require the consent and approval of the parties shall be in writing and shall be signed by the Union Shop Chairperson, Local Union President, the Union's International Representative and a representative of the MCIA.

In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the policies or procedures adopted for Roosevelt Care Center by the MCIA, the terms of this Agreement shall control.

CONTRACTING OR SUBCONTRACTING

The MCIA recognizes and agrees that any time the work of the Union is to be contracted or subcontracted, it will give the Union notice of its intent (in writing) to solicit proposals or bids.

The MCIA will utilize Article 46. UTILIZATION OF EMPLOYEES prior to contracting outside agencies.

The MCIA agrees that no agency nurse will take preference to staffing and assignments over Employees.

Supervisors will not perform work assigned to the Bargaining Unit. Members of the Union who are designated Preceptors will be responsible for training students, new employees and agency nurses, while functioning in the capacity of paid preceptor. In the event the MCIA's policy changes so that nurses take charge of the units, the MCIA agrees that agency nurses will not take charge of the units when there are qualified staff nurses available willing to accept the assignment.

When a staff nurse requests/needs assistance in the performance of a task, he/she will request assistance from the Supervisor.

All professionals need to respond to the needs of the residents irrespective of Bargaining Unit situations.

DURATION OF CONTRACT

It is hereby agreed that this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from January 1, 2014 until December 31, 2017. The parties agree to commence negotiation for an agreement commencing January 1, 2018 upon notice in writing by either party at least sixty (60) days and not more than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to January 1, 2018.

UTILIZATION OF EMPLOYEES

In developing and implementing a staff plan for Roosevelt Care Center, the MCIA shall refrain from utilizing "per diem" personnel from outside employment agencies unless the MCIA has first attempted to satisfy such staffing requirements by utilizing MCIA employees. In this regard, the MCIA and the Union agree that if a staffing need arises, the MCIA shall satisfy such staffing requirements in the following order of priority:

First:

MCIA part time employees through payment of overtime, if

applicable;

Second:

MCIA full time employees through payment of overtime, if

applicable;

Third:

MCIA per diem employees; and

Fourth:

Agency nurses from outside employment agencies.

Notwithstanding the above, full time Employees shall, under all circumstances, be deemed to be senior to any part-time Employees and/or personnel obtained from outside employment agencies and such full-time Employees shall be afforded preference for purposes of developing a staffing schedule, over part time Employees or personnel obtained from outside employment agencies. Employees under the NFP shall be characterized as full-time or part-time Employees, as applicable.

In the event an Employee is reassigned due to call outs or short staff, the order in which an Employee shall be reassigned from a unit shall be in the following order: late for the shift, agency, special schedule, per diem, part time and then pursuant to any rotational list of full time employees on the specific unit.

ARTICLE 46 COVERAGE OF UNION MEMBERS UNDER MALPRACTICE LIABILITY INSURANCE

The MCIA will include all Employees represented by the Union and employed by MCIA at Roosevelt Care Center under the malpractice liability insurance for Roosevelt Care Center.

PARTICIPATION IN P.E.R.S.

As a public employer, the MCIA will participate in the Public Employee Retirement System. The MCIA shall carry out all obligations imposed upon it to assure continued participation therein by all eligible Employees. Among other things, the MCIA shall make such contribution to P.E.R.S. (including withholdings from Employees' paychecks) as required to maintain current eligibility. In addition, the MCIA shall make such withholdings from Employees' paychecks for purposes of purchasing life insurance policies through P.E.R.S. as may be required by P.E.R.S.

STATE OF EMERGENCY/TRANSPORTATION

In the event of a State of Emergency, the MCIA shall make every reasonable effort to transportation available to Employees. In the event emergency and health care workers are exempt from any travel restrictions during a State of Emergency, the Employee will use its best efforts to report to work. If not possible, they may use a sick or vacation day. In the event the Administrator of the facility declares a weather emergency, any Employee who works the day shall receive double time for hours worked. If an Employee is transported to work by the MCIA during a State of Emergency, the MCIA will provide transportation home to such Employee within a reasonable amount of time following the end of the shift.

SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of this Agreement or application thereof to any Employee or group of Employees is held contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision or application thereof will not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or application will continue in full force and effect. The parties will meet not later than twenty (20) days after such holding for the purpose of attempting to legalize the provision affected.

ORIENTATION

New Employees or Employees transferred from one unit to another shall receive appropriate on-site orientation which may include but not be limited to, familiarization of the Employee with the procedures, objectives and philosophies, organization structure and channels of communication open to the Employee. "On-site" orientation shall begin from the first day of duty and continue as long as necessary. For new Employees, the Union will be provided with thirty (30) minutes during such orientation period to explain its role at RCC. The Director of Nursing will inform the President of the Local as to the time and place of the meeting.

New staff nurses, after the period of formal classroom orientation, will be assigned a preceptor for a period of time necessary to function in the Roosevelt Care Center environment.

During orientation, new nurses will be informed that they may be temporarily reassigned from a unit to another unit if staffing requires, which reassignment shall follow the terms of Article 45.

SUCCESSORSHIP CLAUSE

The MCIA hereby agrees that in the event Roosevelt Care Center is sold or leased, the new owner or lessee shall be required to recognize the Union as the duly authorized representatives of the Employees at Roosevelt Care Center holding the positions and titles set forth in Article 2. The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement and such purchaser or lessee shall offer employment to a majority of the work force of the current Union employees.

DEFINITIONS

Full-time shall mean employees regularly scheduled to work forty (40) hours per week.

Regular part-time shall mean employees regularly scheduled to work a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours and a maximum of thirty-nine (39) hours per week. An Employee who is regularly scheduled to work a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours a week and is not a full time Employee shall be entitled to receive benefits on a pro-rated basis Subject to the Chapter 78 contribution. An Employee who is regularly scheduled to work less than twenty-four (24) hours per week shall not be entitled to any benefits or paid leaves. The only benefit provided to such Employee shall be holiday pay at time and one-half regular pay for any holiday worked.

Temporary shall mean an Employee scheduled to work for a fixed period of time not to exceed ninety (90) days. Such Temporary Employee shall not be entitled to any benefits or paid leave.

Agency Nurses shall mean nurses provided by a staffing agency for the purpose of emergency staffing needs. Agency nurses shall not displace MCIA employees with regard to staffing needs. If Agency nurses become Employees of Roosevelt Care Center, they will be given credit for time served with the Agency when at Roosevelt Care Center for the purpose of seniority, except for pension.

ARTICLE 53 UNIFORMS AND BADGES

The MCIA will not change the current policy concerning the color/print of uniforms without the Union's consent.

The MCIA will provide an identification badge for each new Employee at no cost. If an Employee loses a badge, the MCIA will replace the badge at no cost to the Employee once per calendar year. Employees shall pay \$5.00 for replacement badges if more than one replacement is requested during any calendar year.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties intending to be legally bound under and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, hereby set their hands as of the first of January, 2014.

> MIDDLESEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT **AUTHORITY**

Attest:

Leonard J. Roseman, Chairman

UNITED STEEL WORKERS (USW)

Leo Gerard, International President

By: Stan Johnson, International Secretary -

Treasurer

Tom Conway, InternationalVice-President, Administration

Fred Redmond, International Vice-President, **Human Affairs**

Bob McAuliffe, Director, District 10

USW - LOCAL 10-01426 LOCAL UNION COMMITTEE

zabeth Rivera, President Local Union 1426

Michelle Mauro, Vice-President

Catherine Chucknick, Financial Secretary

Vanessa Hawkins, Trustee

DAV//USW/2014-07/02/2014

HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR SINGLE COVERAGE (PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)

Salary Range	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
less than 20,000	1.13%	2.25%	3.38%	4.50%
20,000-24,999.99	1.38%	2.75%	4.13%	5.50%
25,000-29,999.99	1.88%	3.75%	5.63%	7.50%
30,000-34,999.99	2.50%	5.00%	7.50%	10.00%
35,000-39,999.99	2.75%	5.50%	8.25%	11.00%
40,000-44,999.99	3.00%	6.00%	9.00%	12.00%
45,000-49,999.99	3.50%	7.00%	10.50%	14.00%
50,000-54,999.99	5.00%	10.00%	15.00%	20.00%
55,000-59,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
60,000-64,999.99	6.75%	13.50%	20.25%	27.00%
65,000-69,999.99	7.25%	14.50%	21.75%	29.00%
70,000-74,999.99	8.00%	16.00%	24.00%	32.00%
75,000-79,999.99	8.25%	16.50%	24.75%	33.00%
80,000-94,999.99	8.50%	17.00%	25.50%	34.00%
95,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26.25%	35.00%

HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR MEMBER/SPOUSE/PARTNER OR PARENT/CHILD COVERAGE (PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)

Salary Range	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
less than 25,000	0.88%	1.75%	2.63%	3.50%
25,000-29,999.99	1.13%	2.25%	3.38%	4.50%
30,000-34,999.99	1.50%	3.00%	4.50%	6.00%
35,000-39,999.99	1.75%	3.50%	5.25%	7.00%
40,000-44,999.99	2.00%	4.00%	6.00%	8.00%
45,000-49,999.99	2.50%	5.00%	7.50%	10.00%
50,000-54,999.99	3.75%	7.50%	11.25%	15.00%
55,000-59,999.99	4.25%	8.50%	12.75%	17.00%
60,000-64,999.99	5.25%	10.50%	15.75%	21.00%
65,000-69,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
70,000-74,999.99	6.50%	13.00%	19.50%	26.00%
75,000-79,999.99	6.75%	13.50%	20.25%	27.00%
80,000-84,999.99	7.00%	14.00%	21.00%	28.00%
85,000-99,999.99	7.50%	15.00%	22.50%	30.00%
100,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26.25%	35.00%

HEALTH BENEFITS CONTRIBUTION FOR FAMILY COVERAGE (PERCENTAGE OF PREMIUM)

Salary Range	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4
less than 25,000	0.75%	1.50%	2.25%	3.00%
25,000-29,999.99	1.00%	2.00%	3.00%	4.00%
30,000-34,999.99	1.25%	2.50%	3.75%	5.00%
35,000-39,999.99	1.50%	3.00%	4.50%	6.00%
40,000-44,999.99	1.75%	3.50%	5.25%	7.00%
45,000-49,999.99	2.25%	4.50%	6.75%	9.00%
50,000-54,999.99	3.00%	6.00%	9.00%	12.00%
55,000-59,999.99	3.50%	7.00%	10.50%	14.00%
60,000-64,999.99	4.25%	8.50%	12.75%	17.00%
65,000-69,999.99	4.75%	9.50%	14.25%	19.00%
70,000-74,999.99	5.50%	11.00%	16.50%	22.00%
75,000-79,999.99	5.75%	11.50%	17.25%	23.00%
80,000-84,999.99	6.00%	12.00%	18.00%	24.00%
85,000-89,999.99	6.50%	13.00%	19.50%	26.00%
90,000-94,999.99	7.00%	14.00%	21.00%	28.00%
95,000-99,999.99	7.25%	14.50%	21.75%	29.00%
100,000-109,999.99	8.00%	16.00%	24.00%	32.00%
110,000 and over	8.75%	17.50%	26,25%	35.00%

JOB DESCRIPTIONS

JOB TITLE Register	ed Nurse			
JOB CODE R-23 (4	0 hours)			
JOB DESIGNATION (check one)	Management []	Supervisory []	Non-Supervisory [X]	Union [X]
DEPARTMENT	Nursing			
REPORTS TO	Asst Admin., N	ursing, Clinical (Coordinator, ADON and	d DON
POSITIONS SUPERVISED	LPNs, CNAs, V			

JOB SUMMARY:

Under direction and general supervision, provides assessment and implementation of direct nursing care to residents in a long-term care facility.

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:

Identifies and documents initial assessments of the resident's needs for immediate nursing action following admission. Assesses nursing needs of the resident in order to detect pertinent changes in the clinical picture and identifies appropriate changes necessary in the care plan. Develops, plans, evaluates, and documents care based on this assessment utilizing MDS form.

Initiates appropriate referrals to other departments, services, and/or outside agencies for resident care.

Gives comprehensive patient/resident care.

Consults with supervisors and others regarding significant changes in resident's condition and relays appropriate information to succeeding shift.

Collaborates with the health care team to complete MDS and care planning in compliance with facility and regulatory agency requirements.

Interprets clinical data and notifies the physician of immediate changes in management that are indicated.

Ensures that medical and emergency equipment/devices including alarms are in operating condition, and are available and functioning.

Participates in wound care rounds.

Assists in the orientation and training of new personnel.

Provides clinical supervision of LPN's, CNA's, and other ancillary staff.

Maintains established departmental policies and procedures, objectives, quality assurance program, safety, environmental and infection control standards; promotes adherence to Resident Bill of Rights.

Registered Nurse

OTHER JOB DUTIES:

Attends and participates in required in-service training.

Does related work as required.

BASIC COMPETENCIES EDUCATION:

Graduation from an accredited school of nursing.

Current and valid NJ licensure as a RN.

Ability to read, write, speak and understand English sufficiently to perform job.

EXPERIENCE:

Experience as a Registered Nurse is preferred.

JOB TITLE	Licensed Practica	al Nurse		
JOB CODE	R-17 (40 hours)			
JOB DESIGNATION	Management	Supervisory	Non-Supervisory	Union
(check one)	. []	[]	[]	[X]
DEPARTMENT	Nursing			
REPORTS TO	Registered Nurse, DON	Clinical Coordin	ator, Asst. Admin. Nur	rsing, ADON,
POSITIONS				_
SUPERVISED	CNAs			·

JOB SUMMARY:

Under direction provides nursing care to residents in a long-term care facility. Works under the auspices of RN/Nursing Supervisors.

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:

Provides direct care, such as administration of medications, and treatments and to assigned residents. Completes rounds as appropriate.

Monitors residents' condition and responds appropriately, notifying Clinical Coordinator or Nursing Supervisor as needed.

Documents pertinent information regarding resident responses and nursing interventions in resident's medical records.

Monitors specific data such as medications, lab/diagnostic results and therapies.

Assist in completion of MDS and care planning process under RN direction.

Orients residents and their families to long term care environment and maintains liaison with families.

Participates in committees and conferences as well as orients and assists other clinical personnel.

Initiates appropriate referrals to other departments, services, and/or outside agencies for resident care.

Gives comprehensive patient/resident care.

Consults with supervisors and others regarding significant changes in resident's condition and relays appropriate information to succeeding shift.

Ensures that medical and emergency equipment/devices including alarms are in operating condition, and are available and functioning.

Licensed Practical Nurse

Participates in wound care rounds.

Assists in the orientation and training of new personnel.

Maintains established departmental policies and procedures, objectives, quality assurance program, safety, environmental and infection control standards; promotes adherence to Resident Bill of Rights.

OTHER JOB DUTIES:

Attends and participates in required inservice training.

Does related work as required.

BASIC COMPETENCIES EDUCATION:

Graduation from an accredited school of practical nursing.

Current NJ license to practice as a Licensed Practical Nurse.

Ability to read, write, speak and understand English sufficiently to perform the job.

EXPERIENCE:

One year of experience in clinical nursing is preferred.

	d Nurse (Wound	l Care)		
JOB CODE R-23 (4	0 hours)			
JOB DESIGNATION	Management	Supervisory	Non-Supervisory	Union
(check one)	[]	[]	[X]	[X]
DEPARTMENT	Nursing			
REPORTS TO	Director of Nur	sing, Associate I	Director of Nursing,	
POSITIONS				
SUPERVISED	None			

JOB SUMMARY:

In collaboration with the DON and/or ADON and the treating Physician assesses residents with wounds and participates in the development of appropriate treatment plans. Does necessary follow up to assure that appropriate treatment regime is followed and that resident is responsive.

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:

Participates in the orientation and training of new nurses in wound care policy and techniques and oversees competencies completion.

Inservices staff on policies and procedures for wound care.

On new admissions assesses wound status and works with the physician to develop an effective treatment plan.

Does follow-up with all staff nurses to assure competencies are addressed and up to date.

On at least a weekly basis, implements rounds and coordinates with consulting physicians to assure that treatment plans are implemented, condition of cases is satisfactory and documentation is accurate and timely.

Investigates acquired wounds and furnishes reports to the DON and/or ADON.

Assures that necessary wound care supplies are available and appropriate.

Coordinates with the Rehabilitation staff to assure that their activities are compatible and complimentary to the care of wounds.

OTHER JOB DUTIES:

Coordinates with staff in the implementation of trials on new products and techniques approved by the Administration.

Registered Nurse (Wound Care)

Upholds departmental policies and procedures, quality assurance programs, safety and infection control standards

Participates in interdisciplinary care plan meeting with staff.

Attends and participates in inservice training, meetings, and maintains currency with developments in the field.

Does related work as required.

BASIC COMPETENCIES EDUCATION:

Graduation from an accredited school of nursing. Current and valid NJ licensure as a RN.

Ability to read, write, speak and understand English sufficiently to perform the job.

EXPERIENCE:

Professional nursing experience in the handling of wounds is preferred.

JOB TITLE JOB CODE	Licensed Practica R-17 (40 hours)	al Nurse (Employee	e Health/Risk Managemen	t)
JOB DESIGNATION (check one)	Management [Supervisory []	Non-Supervisory [X]	Union [X]
DEPARTMENT	Nursing			
REPORTS TO	Director of Nursi	ing; Associate Direc	ctor of Nursing	
POSITIONS SUPERVISED	None			

JOB SUMMARY:

Under the general direction and supervision of the DON and Associate DON, formulates and implements the facility wide employee health and risk management programs, including the training aspects, preventive medical procedures and on-going practices and procedures.

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:

Participates in the orientation process by educating new employees in risk management and employee health requirements, procedures and processes.

For staff employees, participates in continuing education seminars and in-house training and development programs. Schedules and conducts in-servicing programs for staff.

Assists management in establishing and implementing comprehensive policies and procedures related to risk management and employee health. Investigates incidents and accidents occurring at the facility related to health and safety and makes recommendations to the Director of Nursing for corrective interventions in conjunction with the Interdisciplinary Care(IDC) team.

Collects and analyzes data and statistics relating to health and safety and makes recommendations to DON and Associate DON for correction or improvements.

Recommends improvements and corrective actions to employee health and safety and risk management practices and procedures.

Assists in completing pre-employment and physical examinations for new employees and annual health examinations for staff, assists and participates with Physicians in health examinations and completes annual health screening questionnaires.

Oversees and/or assists in Mantoux testing, hepatitis B vaccinations, rubella screening and influenza and other health screening vaccinations.

Investigates all medication errors and provides factual reports and recommendations for improvement to DON or Associate DON.

Analyzes statistical and other data from CQI reports in the area of risk management and employee health and safety and reports issues and recommendations for changes or improvements to the DON and/or Associate DON.

<u>Licensed Practical Nurse – Employee Health – Risk</u> <u>Management</u>

OTHER JOB DUTIES:

Attends and participates in facility and other meeting and committees relating to employee health and risk management.

Attends and participates in in-service training, meetings is knowledgeable of current developments in the field.

Does related work as required.

BASIC COMPETENCIES EDUCATION:

Graduation from an accredited school of Nursing.

Current and valid New Jersey license as a Licensed Practical Nurse.

Ability to read, write, speak and understand English sufficiently to perform the job.

EXPERIENCE:

Professional nursing experience in the area of employee health and risk management is preferred.

UNION MEMBERSHIP FORM

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY

First Name

First Name	Middle Initial	Last Name
Social Security Nu	umber	
UNITED	STEELWORKERS (USW)
Local Uni	on No	*
as "United Steelworkers" or "USW representatives, to act for me as a pay, wages, hours of employment, my employer covering all such my	It membership in the United Steel, P Istrial and Service Workers Internations (*), and of my own free will hereby auth a collective bargaining agency in all m or other conditions of employment, an latters including contracts which may orkers, as a condition of my continued	al Union (also known in short norize the USW, its agents or natters pertaining to rates of nd to enter into contracts with
	ire	
Name:		
	•	
Street Address/Postal Office Box No.		
	State	ZipCode
E-Mail:	Social Security No.	
Employer:	Facility:	
Department:		
Initiation fee \$		

	Employer			
	Facility		Date	20
	and (if owing by me) an initiation of the aforesaid payment sha Treasurer of the United Steel International Union, AFL-CIO, Gateway Center, Pittsburgh, Finis assignment and authors.	on fee each as designated by the lil be remitted promptly by you to Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Ma CLC, (also known in short as the "U a. 15222.	from my pay each month, while I ar membership status in the Union, mo international Secretary/Treasurer o James D. English, or his successor anufacturing, Exergy, Allied Industr Jnion', "United Steelworkers" or "US	oning dues, assessm if the Union. international Secre ial and Service Wor W") or its successor,
	the Union, whichever across a	nonor	not be cancelled for a period of on t collective bargaining agreement be	tween the Employer
	and assignment shall become revoke by giving to the appropriate notice signed by me an expiration of any such year or whether the Employer and the Such notice of revocation shall notice is given; a copy of any sufficient of the such restrictions or gifts to the such restriction of the such restrictions or gifts to the such restriction of the such restr	effective and cannot be cancelled oriate management representative d which shall be postmarked or rec- rithin the fifteen (15) days following Union covering my employment is become effective respecting the dis-	orization and assignment in effect a is of one (1) year from such date. I ag I by me during any of such years, be of the facility in which I am then ceived by the Employer within fifteer in the termination date of any collectivity is such date shall occur within one lues for the month following the more the Financial Secretary of the Loca as charitable contributions for Feder Revenue Code	ree that this authorize ut that I may cancel employed, an individ n (15) days following ve bargaining agreen of such annual peric oth in which such wri
			ire	
	Witness			
		(ORIGINAL FOR I	Check No.	
	UNITED STEE	(ORIGINAL FOR I	Check No EMPLOYER)	RIZATION
	UNITED STEE Employer Facility	(ORIGINAL FOR I	Check No EMPLOYER) CHECK-OFF AUTHO! Date	RIZATION 20
s a r v e e c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c	Employer Facility Pursuant to this authorization a collective bargaining unit in the E and (if owing by me) an initiation. The aforesaid payment shall is Treasurer of the United Steel, Finternational Union, AFL-CIO, CL Gateway Center, Pittsburgh, Pa. This assignment and authoriza appearing above or until the terms the Union, whichever occurs soo I hereby voluntarily authorize a shorter of the periods above specified assignment shall become efferevoke by giving to the appropriamiten notice signed by me and wexpiration of any such year or with setween the Employer and the Usuch notice of revocation shall become is given; a copy of any such while contributions or gifts to the may be tax deductible under	and assignment, please deduct from ployer, and irrespective of my me fee each as designated by the Interest of the remitted promptly by you to Jar apper and Forestry, Rubber, Manu C, (also known in short as the "Unic 15222, ation shall be effective and cannot ination of the date of the current contained in the first of the current contained in the first of the current contained the contained in the first of the current of the current contained in the first of the current of the c	Check No. EMPLOYER) CHECK-OFF AUTHOR The company pay each month, while I am it embership status in the Union, monthernational Secretary/Treasurer of the times D. English, or his successor, I utacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial on", "United Steelworkers" or "USW of the cancelled for a period of one collective bargaining agreement between the company of such years, but of the facility in which I am then errord by the Employer within fifteen (the termination date of any collective such date shall occur within one of the stort the month following the monther than the contributions for Federal evenue Code.	rice employment with the thild dues, assessment the Union. International Secretal and Service Worker or its successor, First (1) year from the dayeer the expiration of the ethat this authorization that I may cancel ar mployed, an individuration of the expiration of the thing authorization that I may cancel ar mployed, an individuration of the expiration and periodic in which such writte Union.
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Employer Facility Pursuant to this authorization a collective bargaining unit in the E and (if owing by me) an initiation The aforesaid payment shall I Treasurer of the United Steel, F International Union, AFL-CIO, CL Gateway Center, Pittsburgh, Pa. This assignment and authorizappearing above or until the term the Union, whichever occurs soo I hereby voluntarily authorize is shorter of the periods above specified assignment shall become efferevoke by giving to the appropria written notice signed by me and vexpiration of any such year or with between the Employer and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the periods above specific to the proper and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the Year o	And assignment, please deduct from ployer, and irrespective of my me fee each as designated by the Interper and Forestry, Rubber, Manu. C. (also known in short as the "Unict 15222. The promptive of the current content of the date of the current content of the current	Check No. EMPLOYER) CHECK-OFF AUTHOR The common pay each month, while I am is embership status in the Union, montifernational Secretary/Treasurer of the mes D. English, or his successor, if ufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial on", "United Steetworkers" or "USW of the cancelled for a period of one obliective bargaining agreement between the common payon of such years, but of the facility in which I am then envived by the Employer within fifteen (he termination date of any collective such date shall occur within one of its for the month following the monthe Financial Secretary of the Local I charitable contributions for Federal evenue Code.	rice that I may cancel are the expiration of the
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Employer Facility Pursuant to this authorization a collective bargaining unit in the E and (if owing by me) an initiation The aforesaid payment shall I Treasurer of the United Steel, F International Union, AFL-CIO, CL Gateway Center, Pittsburgh, Pa. This assignment and authorizappearing above or until the term the Union, whichever occurs soo I hereby voluntarily authorize is shorter of the periods above specified assignment shall become efferevoke by giving to the appropria written notice signed by me and vexpiration of any such year or with between the Employer and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the periods above specific to the proper and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the Year o	And assignment, please deduct from ployer, and irrespective of my me fee each as designated by the Interper and Forestry, Rubber, Manu. C. (also known in short as the "Unict 15222. The promptive of the current content of the date of the current content of the current	Check No. EMPLOYER) CHECK-OFF AUTHOR The common pay each month, while I am is embership status in the Union, montifernational Secretary/Treasurer of the mes D. English, or his successor, if ufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial on", "United Steetworkers" or "USW of the cancelled for a period of one obliective bargaining agreement between the common payon of such years, but of the facility in which I am then envived by the Employer within fifteen (he termination date of any collective such date shall occur within one of its for the month following the monthe Financial Secretary of the Local I charitable contributions for Federal evenue Code.	rice that I may cancel are the expiration of the
t t	Employer Facility Pursuant to this authorization a collective bargaining unit in the E and (if owing by me) an initiation The aforesaid payment shall I Treasurer of the United Steel, F International Union, AFL-CIO, CL Gateway Center, Pittsburgh, Pa. This assignment and authorizappearing above or until the term the Union, whichever occurs soo I hereby voluntarily authorize is shorter of the periods above specified assignment shall become efferevoke by giving to the appropria written notice signed by me and vexpiration of any such year or with between the Employer and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the periods above specific to the proper and the Usuch notice of revocation shall be notice is given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the year of the Usuch Notice I so given; a copy of any such year or with the year of the Year o	And assignment, please deduct from ployer, and irrespective of my me fee each as designated by the Interper and Forestry, Rubber, Manu. C. (also known in short as the "Unict 15222. The promptive of the current content of the date of the current content of the current	Check No. EMPLOYER) CHECK-OFF AUTHOR The company pay each month, while I am it embership status in the Union, monthernational Secretary/Treasurer of the times D. English, or his successor, I utacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial on", "United Steelworkers" or "USW of the cancelled for a period of one collective bargaining agreement between the company of such years, but of the facility in which I am then errord by the Employer within fifteen (the termination date of any collective such date shall occur within one of the stort the month following the monther than the contributions for Federal evenue Code.	rice that I may cancel are the expiration of the

-

ŧ